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Report of the Board of Directors
2012 Year in Review

We are pleased to report on the financial results and operational performance of National Central
Cooling Company PJSC (“Tabreed”) for the year ended 31 December 2012.

From a financial and operational perspective, 2012 saw Tabreed reach a number of key milestones:

¢ Netincome totaled AED 236.3 million — the highest level since the company’s formation;

e Tabreed continued to deliver on its stated strategy of focusing on the core chilled water
business, with revenues from this segment surpassing 1 billion dirhams for the first time in the
company’s history;

® The company completed its build-out programme and now has over 767,000 RT of installed
capacity across the group.

The increase in net income is driven by the operations in the core chilled water business, Since 2009,
profit from operations in this segment has increased from AED 63 million to AED 274 million in 2011,
For the full year 2012, that figure has increased by 27% to AED 347 million. This significant
improvement underscores the success of the company’s strategy of focusing on its care chilled water
business while phasing out its non-care value chain businesses.

The company’s strength as an organization is bolstered by the long-term, stable contracts we have with
our customers. At the end of 2012, 46% of Tabreed’s capacity was contracted to government clients.
Many of these contracts are for 25 year duration with well-established UAE entities and therefore
provide guaranteed returns.

On 31 December 2012, Tabreed issued additional Mandatory Convertible Bonds with the value of AED
1,131,602,200.50 to Mubadala Development Company as the final part of the 2011 recapitalization
program. The new bonds were issued to settle the old Subordinated Bridge Loan and carry essentially
the same terms and conditions as the existing AED 1.7 billion mandatory convertible bonds that were
issued by Tabreed in April 2011.

2012 Financial Highlights:

® Net profit attributable to the parent increased by 29 per cent to AED 236.3 million (2011:
AED 182.7 million)

®* Group revenue remained relatively unchanged at AED 1,128.7 million (2011: AED 1,114.6
million) in line with expectations as the phase-out of the non-core value chain businesses
continued

e Chilled water revenue increased by 7% to AED 1,011.0 million (2011: AED 943.8 millian)

*  Profit from chilled water operations increased by 27 per cent to AED 347.1 million (2011:
AED 274.4 million) driven by economies of scale and enhanced efficiencies

® EBITDA increased by 15 per cent to AED 501.7 million (2011: AED 434.7 million)

® Net finance costs decreased by 18 per cent to AED 176.7 million (2011: AED 216.1 million)
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2012 Operational Highlights:

65 plants in total across the GCC — 59 of those are located in the UAE

63,800 RT of connected capacity added across the group

Group installed capacity increased by 2% to 767,125 RT

Group connected capacity increased by 9% to 766,997 RT

UAE installed capacity increased by 3% to 605,325 RT

UAE connected capacity increased by 9% to 602,444 RT

In Q1 2012, a new district cooling plant in Ajman was opened with a capacity of 10,000 RT

In Q2 2012, we expanded the capacity of the Al-Ain plant serving the UAE University to over
18,000 RT

The Year Ahead

As we move forward, we are confident that Tabreed can maintain its position as the leading district
cooling provider in the region. The company’s management is focused on continuing to operate the
business as efficiently as possible and derive maximum return from existing assets. We are also well
positioned to capitalize on new market opportunities as they arise, not only in the UAE but across the
GCC.

In the GCC, cooling is an essential service, and with increased urbanization and continued economic
diversification, Tabreed's expertise in providing energy-efficient, cost-effective and environmentally-
friendlier cooling solutions make it an indispensable partner to this economic growth.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

NATIONAL CENTRAL COOLING COMPANY PJSC

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of National Central Cooling
Company PJSC (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”), which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2012 and the consolidated income statement,
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Management s responsibility for the cansolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the applicable provisions
of the articles of association of the Company and the UAE Commercial Companies Law of 1984 (as
amended), and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
CITor,

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit,
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ Jjudgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate for the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Group as of 31 December 2012 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We also confirm that, in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements include, in all material
respects, the applicable requirements of the UAE Commercial Companies Law of 1984 (as amended) and
the articles of association of the Company; proper books of account have been kept by the Company; an
inventory was duly carried out and the contents of the report of the Board of Directors relating to these
consolidated financial statements are consistent with the books of account. We further report that we
have obtained all the information and explanations which we required for the purpose of our audit and, to
the best of our knowledge and belief, no violations of the UAE Commercial Companies Law of 1984 (as
amended) or of the articles of association of the Company have occurred during the year which would
have had a material effect on the business of the Company or on its financial position.

EMJC, b yowj

Signed by

Mohammad Mobin Khan
Partner

Ernst & Young
Registration No. 532

31 January 2013
Abu Dhabi
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National Central Cooling Company PJSC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2012

Revenues
Operating costs

GROSS PROFIT

Administrative and other expenses
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

Finance costs

Finance income

Changes in fair value of derlvative liability and
other income

Share of results of assoclates

Share of results of joint ventures

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Ordinary equity holders of the parent
Non-controlling interests

Basic and dlluted earnings per share attributable to
ardinary equity holders of the parent (AED)

The attached notes 1 to 35 form part of these consolidated financial statements.

Nates
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2012 2011
AED ‘000 AED ‘000
1,128,738 1,114,571
(628,137) (654,788)
500,601 459,783
(144,339) (158,390)
356,262 301,393
(186,849) (215,861)
10,183 3,768
641 44,138
57,587 50,700
(3,579} 1,448
234,245 181,586
236,351 182,705
(2,106) (1,119)
234,245 181,586
0.08 0.09
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2012
2012 2011
Note AED 000 AED ‘000
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 234,245 181,586
Other comprehensive income
Net movement in fair value of derivatives in cash flow hedges (7,207) 35,754
Share of changes in fair value of derlvatives of associate in cash flow
hedges 12 464 (5,635)
Exchange differences arising on translation of overseas operations (121) 7
Other comprehensive (expense) income for the year (7,464) 30,126
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 226,781 211,712
Attributable to:
Ordinary equity holders of the parent 228,887 212,831
Non-controlling Interests (2,106) (1,119)
226,781 211,712

The attached notes 1 to 35 form part of these consolidated financial statements.




National Central Cooling Company PJSC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2012

2012 2011
ASSETS Notes AED ‘000 AED 000
Non-current assets
Capital work in progress 10 110,829 466,135
Property, plant and equipment 11 4,939,095 4,626,461
Intangible assets 14 37,596 37,596
Investments in assoclates 12 401,487 336,926
Investmeants in joint ventures 13 1,427 4,334
Loan to a joint venture 16831 56,544 56,544
Finance lease receivables 17 1,619,409 1,619,815
7,166,387 7,147,811
Current assats
Inventaries 33,878 33,909
Accounts receivable and prepayments 18 558,266 788,472
Loan to an associate 16&31 - 3,662
Finance lease receivables 17 120,959 106,300
Contract work in progress 19 52,276 48,305
Cash and short term deposits 20 560,417 511,997
1,325,794 1,492,645
Assets classified as held for sale 8 - 103,297
TOTAL ASSETS B,492,181 8,743,753
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
Issued capital 21 659,063 659,063
Treasury shares 22 (2,016) (2,018)
Statutory reserve 23 103,021 79,386
Retained earnings 130,209 38,278
Foreign currency translation reserve (2,424) (2,303)
Cumulative changes In fair value of derivatives (48,500) (41,157)
Mandatory convertible bend and subordinated loan facility — equity companent 27 2,353,138 1,945,245
Other reserve 23 1,153,867 1,145,196
4,346,358 3,821,692
Nen —controlling interasts 80,233 _ 92,391
Total aquity 4,426,591 3,914,083
Non-current liabilities
Accounts payable and accruals 30 29,658 41,462
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 25 1,980,526 2,110,921
Islamic financing arrangements 26 505,790 527,096
Obligations under finance lease 28 26,112 30,453
Mandatory convertible bond and subordinated loan facllity- llability component 27 545,130 909,860
Employees’ end of service benefits 29 17,543 17,080
3,104,765 3,636,882
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and aceruals 30 608,518 701,503
Advances from a related party 24 73,869 400,000
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 25 135,381 72,811
Islamic financing arrangements 26 22,894 11,110
Mandatary convertible bond and subordinated loan facility - liahility component 27 112,799 -
Obligations under finance lease 28 7,364 7,364
960,825 1,182,788
Total liabilities 4,065,590 4,829,670
TOTAL EQUITY ANBrLIA 8,492,181 8,743,753
R

Waleeg alAT i ~Tasim H. Thahet
M4 CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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National Central Cooling Company PJSC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2012

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit for the year

Non-cash adjustments to reconcile profit for the year to net cash flows:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of trademarks
Finance Income relating to finance lease receivable
Share of results of associates
Share of results of joint ventures
Net movement in employees' end of service benefits
Interast income
Finance costs
Other income and changes In fair value of derivative liability

Working capital adjustments:
Inventaries
Accounts receivable and prepayments
Contract work In progress
Accounts payable and accruals

Lease rentals received
Net cash flows from operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Investment in assoclates

Payments for capital worl in progress

Dividends recelved from associates

Repayment of loan by an assaciate

Interest received

Net cash flows used in investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Interest bearing loans and borrowings received
Interest bearing loans and borrowings repaid
Subordinated loan received

Islamie financing arrangement received

Islamic financing arrangement repalid
Recapitalization program costs paid

Payment for obligations under finance lease
Interest paid

Capital contribution by non-controlling interests
Dividends pald to non-controlling interests

Net cash flows (used in) from financing activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER

The attached notes 1 to 35 form part of these consolidated financial statements,

Naotes

11
14
17
12
13
29

11

12

25
27

26
26

20
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2012 2011
AED 000 AED ‘000
234,245 181,586
145,400 133,282
g 2
(124,929) (99,625)
(57,012) (44,520)
3,579 (1,448)
459 2,119
(10,183) (3,768)
186,849 219,861
g (40,176)
33 1,887
230,030 (126,505)
(3,971) (7,601)
(318,927) (7,535)
110,676 85,005
396,249 292,564
(2,441) {2,920)
- 1,033
(18,639) -
(119,263) (607,037)
11,554 -
3,662 21,782
10,360 3,768
(114,773) (583,374)
1,431 446,710
{77,188) (9,718)
- 1,102,000
. 52,801
(11,796) (734,600)
2 (92,795)
(4,341) (3,950)
{131,110) (262,158)
1,907 -
(11,959) (3,583)
(233,056) 494,709
48,420 203,899
511,997 308,098
560,417 511,397
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National Central Cooling Company PJSC ([ 1] tabreed
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2012
1 ACTIVITIES

National Central Cooling Company PISC (“Tabreed” or “the Company”) Is registered In the United Arab Emirates as
a Public Joint Stock Company pursuant to the UAE Commercial Companies Law No. 8 of 1984 (as amended) and Is
listed on the Dubai Financial Market. The Company Is a subsidiary of the Mubadala Development Campany PJSC
(“MDC” or the “Parent Company”). The principal activity of the Company Is to supply chilled water. Activities of
subsidiaries are described in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company’s registered office is located at P O Box 32444, Dubai, United Arab Emirates.

The consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of
Directors on 31 January 2013.

21 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention modified to include the
measurement at falr value of derivative financial instruments. The consolidated financial statements have been
presented in United Arab Emirates Dirhams (“AED”) which is the functional currency of the parent Company. All
values are rounded to the nearest thousand (AED ‘000) except when otherwise indicated.

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as issued by International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and applicable requirements
of the UAE Commercial Companlies Law of 1984 (as amended),

2.2 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Tabreed and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) as at 31 December each year.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. All intra-group balances, transactions, income and expenses and profits and losses
resulting from intra-group transactions that are recognised in assets, are eliminated in full.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which cantral Is transferred to the Group. Control is achieved
where the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated income statement from the date of acquisition or up to the date of disposal, as appropriate.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is attributed to the non-controlling interest even If that results in
a deficit balance.

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Group's accounting policies and the key sources of estimation uncertainty are the same as those applied to the
consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2011, except for the following
amendments to IFRS effective as of 1 January 2012 which da not have any significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements:
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National Central Cooling Company PJSC [

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2012

23 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES continued

IAS 12 Income Taxes (Amendment) - Deferred Taxes: Recavery of Underlying Assets

The amendment clarified the determination of deferred tax on Investment property measured at fair value and
introduces a rebuttable presumption that deferred tax on Investment property measured using the fair value
model in IAS 40 should be determined on the basis that its carrying amount will be recovered through sale. It
includes the requirement that deferred tax on non-depreciable assets that are measured using the revaluation
model in IAS 16 should always be measured on a sale basls. The amendment is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2012 and has no effect on the Group's financial position, performance or its
disclosures.

IFRS 1 First-Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards (Amendment) — Severe

Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed Dates for First-Time Adopters

The IASB provided guidance on how an entity should resume presenting IFRS financial statements when its
functional currency ceases to be subject to hyperinflation. The amendment is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2011. The amendment had no impact on the Group.

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Enhanced Derecognition Disclosure Requirements

The amendment requires additional disclosure about financial assets that have been transferred but not
derecognised to enable the user of the Group's financial statements to understand the relationship with those
assets that have not been derecognised and their associated liabilities. In addition, the amendment requires
disclosures about the entity’s continuing involvernent In derecognised assets to enable the users to evaluate the
nature of, and risks associated with, such invelvement. The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 luly 2011. The Group does not have any assets with these characteristics.

2.4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires management to make |udgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a materlal adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or
liahility affected in the future.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting palicies, management has made the following judgments, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:

IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease

Management determines whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease based on the substance of the
arrangement at inception date whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific
asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

The Company enters into Cooling Agreements (the “Agreements”) with its customers. To the extent such
agreements are determined to contain a lease, the provisions of 1AS 17 “leases” are applied to determine whether
the Company has retained or transferred the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the related assets.

Impairment of non financial assets — Indicatars of impalrment

Management determines at each date of statement of financlal position whether there are any Indicators of
impairment relating to the Group's cash generating units, property, plant and equipment, capital work in progress
and intangible assets. A broad range of internal and external factors is considered as part of the indieator review
process. Refer to note 11 for details on judgments and estimates applied by the management.




-\

[
T

National Central Cooling Company PJSC f

fabreed

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2012

2.4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS continued

Fair value of financial Instruments

Where the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financlal position
cannot be derived from active markets, their fair value is determined using valuation techniques Including the
discounted cash flow model, The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but
where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment Is required in establishing fair values. The judgments Include
considerations of Inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors
could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Contingencies

By their nature, contingencies will only be resolved when one or more future events accur or fail to aceur. The
assessment of contingencles inherently involves the exercise of significant judgment and estimate of the outeome
of future events. The Group recelves claims from its customers and suppliers as part of its ongoing business and
records a provision based on assessment of reliability and probability of the outflow of economic resources.

Asset retirement obligation

The Group exercises judgement in evaluating whether an arrangement cantains a legal or constructive obligation
to remove the plant and equipment and restore the land at the end of the contractual arrangement or end of
useful life of the Group’s plant and equlpment constructed and installed on land leased from the respective
custamer or 3rd party. The cost estimates relating to asset retirement obligations can vary in response to many
factors including changes to relevant legal requirements, the emergence of new technigues or experience at sites.
The expected timing of expenditure can also change. As a result, there could be significant adjustments to the
provisions established which would affect future financial results.

Provisions relating to contracts

The Group reviews all its arrangements on a regular basis to identify any arrangements where the unavoidable
costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under
it. The unavolidable costs under a contract reflect the least net cost of exiting from the cantract, which is the lower
of the cast of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfll it. The Group estimates any
such provision based on the facts and circumstances relevant to the contract.

Financial instruments

The Group classifles funding received from a major shareholder as financial liability and / or equity based on the
terms of the agreements. The determination of the falr value of the financial liability on inception requires
management to make significant assumptions in terms of market interest rates on those dates,

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment te the carrying amounts of assets and liabllities within
the next financial year are discussed below:

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Company’s management determines the estimated useful lives of its property, plant and equipment for
calculating depreciation. This estimate Is determined after considering the current usage of the asset compared to
full utilisation capabilities of the asset and physical wear and tear. Management reviews the residual value and
useful lives annually.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment testing requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash generating units. The value in use
requires the Company to estimate the amount and timing of future cash flows, terminal value of the assets, cost to
complete the construction of the assets and choose a suitable discount rate in arder to calculate the present value
of the cash flows.

10
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2012

24 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS continued

The net carrying amounts of nen-financial assets affected by the above estimations are as follows:

2012 2011

AED ‘000 AED 000

Capital work In progress 110,829 466,135
Property, plant and equipment 4,939,095 4,626,461
Intangible assets 37,596 37,596

Impairment of accounts receivable, amounts due from related parties, finance lease receivable and loan to an
associate

An estimate of the collectible amount of accounts receivable, amounts due from related parties and finance lease
receivable is made when collection of the full amount is no longer probable. For individually significant amaunts,
this estimation is performed on an individual basis. Amounts which are not individually significant, but which are
past due, are assessed collectively and a provision applied according to the length of time past due, based on
historical recovery rates.

At the reporting date, gross trade accounts receivable, amounts due from related parties, finance lease receivable
and loan to an associate and a joint venture were AED 440.9 millien (2011: AED 442.1million), AED 58.1 million
(2011: AED 282.1 millien), AED 1,740 million (2011: AED 1,726 millien) and AED 56.5 million (2011: AED 60.2
million) respectively and impairment loss recognised in the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
December 2012 was AED 3.3 million (2011: AED 2.5 millien), AED nil (2011: AED nil), AED nil (2011: AED nil) and
AED nil (2011: AED nil) respectively.

Impairment of inventaries

Inventories are held at the lower of cost and net reallsable value. When inventories become old or obsolete, an
estimate is made of their net realisable value. For individually significant amounts this estimation is performed on
an individual basis. Amounts which are not individually significant, but which are old or cbsolete, are assessed
collectively and a provision applied according to the inventory type and the degree of ageing or obsaolescence,
based on historical selling prices.

At the reparting date, gross inventory was AED 33.9 million (2011: AED 33.9 million). No prevision has been made
for obsolete inventaries during the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: AED nil). Any difference between the
ameunts actually realised in future periods and the amounts expected to be realised will be recognised in the
consolidated income statement,

Contracting revenue and expenses

When the outcome of a contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue and contract costs associated with
the contract are recognised as revenue and expenses respectively by reference to the stage of completion of the
contract activity at the reporting date. An expected loss on the contract is recognised as an expense immediately.

The outeome of the contract is considered to be reliably estimated when all the following conditions are satisfied:

a) total contract revenue can be measured reliably;

b) it Is probable that the economic benefits associated with the contract will flow to the Graup;

c) both the contract costs to complete the contract and the stage of contract completion at the reporting
date can be measured reliably; and

d) the contract costs attributable to the contract can be clearly identified and measured rellably so that

actual contract costs Incurred can be compared with prior estimates.

11
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2012

2.4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS continued

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably revenue is recognised only to the
extent of contract costs incurred.

The Group estimates the cost to complete the projects in order to determine the cost attributable to revenue
being recognised based on reports from third party independent consultant.

25 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Revenue recognition

Sales are recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer
and the amount of revenue can be measured reliahly. For supply of chilled water, revenue comprises of available
capacity and variable output provided to customers and is recognised when services are provided,

Revenue from supervision contracts services is recognised as supervision services are rendered. Revenue in
respect of study and design contracts services is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the
contract, when 1) it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the contract will flow to the Group; 2)
the contract costs attributable to the contract can be reliably estimated; and 3) the Group is reasonably confident
about the collection of the amount recognised.

Contract revenue represents the total sales value of work performed during the year, including the estimated sales
value of contracts In progress assessed on a percentage of completion method, measured by reference to total
cost incurred to date to estimated total cost of the contract. Provision is made for any known losses and probable
contingencies.

Where the Group determines that an agreement with a customer contains a finance |lease, capacity payments are
recognised as finance income using a rate of return to give constant periodic rate of return on the investment in
each year. Finance income on finance |ease recelvables is included in revenue due to its operating nature.

Interest income including interest on finance lease receivable is recognised as the interest accrues using the
effective interest method that is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial instruments to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Connection fees are recognised on a straight line basis over the term of the respective customer contracts unless it
represents a separately identifiable service and satisfies other criteria for upfront recognition to the consolidated
income statement.

Leases where the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are
classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same bases as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the pericd in which they are earned. Where the Group determines
that the cooling service agreements to contain an operating lease, capacity payments are recognised as operating
lease rentals on a systematic basis to the extent that capacity has been made available to the custamers during
the year.

Rental income arising from operating leases on chilled water plants is accounted for on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms and included in revenue due to its operating nature,

12
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2012

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are presented in AED, which is the parent Company’s functional and
presentation currency. The functional currency Is the currency of the primary economic enviranment in which an
entity operates. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency.

i) Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are Initlally recorded by the Group entities at their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the date of transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate
of exchange ruling at the balance sheet reporting date.

All differences are taken to the consolidated income statement with the exception of monetary items that provide
an effective hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation. These are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income until the disposal of the net investment, at which time they are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Non maonetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreigh currency are translated using the exchange
rates as at the dates of the initial transactions.

ii) Group companies

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into AED at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance
sheet reporting date and their income statements are translated at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year. The exchange differences arising on the translation are recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income. On disposal of a forelgn entity, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to that
particular foreign operation Is recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Capital work in progress

Capital work in progress is recorded at cost incurred by the Group for the construction of the plants and
distribution network. Allocated costs directly attributable to the construction of the assets are capitalised. The
capital work in progress is transferred to the appropriate asset category and depreciated In accardance with the
Group's policies when construction of the asset is completed and it is available for use.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset are capitalised
(net of interest income on temporary Investment of borrowings) as part of the cost of the asset until the asset is
commissioned for use. Borrowing costs In respect of completed and suspended projects or not attributable to
qualifying assets are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

For partially operational plants and distribution assets, the Company ceases capitalising borrowing costs when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use are complete.

13
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2012

25 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any Impairment in value, Such
cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment when that cost is incurred, if the recognition
criteria are met. Likewise, when a majar inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of
the property plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied, All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised In consolidated income statement as incurred. Land is not depreciated,
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Plant and related integrated assets aver 30 years
Buildings over 50 years
Distribution assets over 50 years
Furniture and fixtures over 3 to 4 years
Office equipment and instruments over 3 to 4 years
Motor vehicles over 4to 5 years

The asset’s residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each financial year end.

The Group perfaorms regular major overhauls of its district cooling plants. When each major overhaul is performed,
its cost |s recognised in the carrying amount of the item of property, plant and equipment as a replacement if the
recognition criteria are satisfied. The cost recognised is depreciated over the period till the next planned major
overhaul.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from Its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in consolidated
Income statement in the year the asset is derecognised.

Investments In associates

The Group’s investments In associates are accounted for under the equity method of accounting. These are
entities over which the Company exercises significant influence and which is neither a subsidiary nor a joint
venture.

Investments in associates are carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost, plus post-
acquisition changes in the Company’s share of net assets of the associates, less any impairment in value. The
consalidated income statement reflects the Company’s share of the results of its associates, Where there has been
a change recognised directly In the equity of the associate, the Company recognises its share of any changes and
discloses this, when applicable, in the statement of comprehensive Income. Profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Company and the assoclate are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate.
Losses on transaction are recognised immediately if the loss provides evidence of a reduction in the net realisable
value of current assets or an impairment loss.

The financial statements of the associates are prepared for the same reporting period as the Company. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2012

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Investments in associates continued

After application of the equity method, the Company determines whether It Is necessary to recognise an additional
Impairment loss of the Group’s investment in its associates. The Company determines at each reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in assoclate is impaired. If this is the case the
Company calculates the amount of impairment as being the difference between the fair value of the associate and
the acquisition cost (and post acquisition changes in the net assets of the associate) and recognises the amount in
the consolidated income statement.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Company measures and recognises any retaining
investment at its falr value, Any difference between the carrying amount of the asseclate upon loss of significant
influence and the fair value of the retaining investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in the
consolidated income statement,

Investments In joint ventures

The Company has investments in joint ventures which are jointly controlled entities, whereby the ventures have a
contractual arrangement that establishes joint control over the economic activities of the entities. The Company
carries interests in joint ventures in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost, plus post-acquisition
changes in the Company’s share of net assets of the jalnt ventures, less any impairment in value. The consolidated
income statement reflects the Company’s share of the results of its joint ventures.

Where there has been a change recognised directly In the equity of the joint venture, the Company recognises its
share of any changes and discloses this, when applicable, in the statement of comprehensive income. Profits and
losses resulting from transactions between the Company and the joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
interest in the joint ventures. Losses on transaction are recognised immediately if the loss provides evidence of a
reduction in the net realisable value of current assets or an impairment loss.

The financial statements of the joint ventures are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent company.
Adjustments are made where necessary to bring the aceounting palicies in line with those of the Company.

After application of the equity method, the Company determines whether it is necessary to recognise an additional
impairment loss of the Group's investment in its joint ventures. The Company determines at each balance sheet
reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in joint ventures is impaired. If this is
the case the Company calculates the amount of impairment as being the difference between the fair value of the
joint ventures and the acquisition cost (and post acquisition changes in the net assets of the joint ventures) and
recognises the amount in the consolidated income statement.

The Joint venture is consolidated until the date on which the Company ceases to have joint contral over the joint
ventures. Upon loss of joint control and provided the former jeint control entity does not become a subsidiary or
assoclate, the Company measures and recognises its remaining Investment at its falr value. Any difference
between the carrying amount of the former joint controlled entity upon less of jeint contral and the fair value of
the remaining investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised immediately In the consolldated income
statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2012

25 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is its fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and
expenditure is reflected in the consolidated income statement in the year in which the expenditure is incurred. The
useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amartisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.
Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embadied
in the asset is accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as
changes in accounting estimates,

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for Impalrment annually, either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite |ife is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is
made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the consolidated income statement
when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset's
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, recent marke transactions are taken
into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or other
avallable fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Group’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations cover a period to the end of useful life of the plants.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any Indicatian
that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists,
the Group estimates the assets’ or cash-generating units’ recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the
asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is
recognised in the consalidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2012

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Impairment of non-financial assets continued

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost being the excess of the cost of the
business combination over the Company’s Interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabllities and
contingent liabilities. Following Initial recognition, goadwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses,

Goodwill is tested for impairment, annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating units, to which
the goodwill is allocated. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating units is less than their carrying
amount an impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future
periods. The Company performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.

Investment and other financial assets

Financial assets within the scope of 1AS 39 are classified as financial assets at fair value through income statement,
loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sale financial assets, or derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through income statement, directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Company determines the classification of its financial assets on initial recognition and, where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at each financial year end.

Trade and settlement date accounting

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, which Is the date that the
Group commits to purchase the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabllities are only offset and the net amount reported In the consolidated statement
of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and the Group
intends to either settle on a net basis, ar to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously,

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method (EIR), less impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking Into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fee or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included in finance income in the income statement.

17



[l
National Central Cooling Company PJSC (]

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2012

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Investment and other financial assets continued

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:

® the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; ar

® the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement: and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has nelther transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset,

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, a new asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in
the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises a liability. The transferred asset and associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset, is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be
required to repay.

When continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or purchased option (including a cash settled option
or similar provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the Group's continuing invalvement is the amount of
the transferred asset that the Group may repurchase, except that in the case of a written put option (including a
cash settled option or similar provision) on an asset measured at fair value, the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value of the transferred asset and the option exercise price.

Impairment and non-collectahility of financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired If, and only
if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the Initial
recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be raliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that thay will enter
bankruptey or other financial reorganisation and where observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults. In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, objective evidence would include a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the Investment below its cost. ‘Significant’ is to be evaluated
against the original cost of the investment and ‘prolonged’ against the peried in which the fair value has been
below its original cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2012

25 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Impairment and non-collectahility of financial assets continued

Financlal assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost the Group first assesses individually whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets
that are not individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impalrment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future expected credit losses that have not yet been incurred), The present value of the estimated future cash
flows is discounted at the financial assets original effective interest rate, If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any Impairment loss Is the current effective Interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss.

The interest income is recorded as part of finance income in the consolidated income statement. Loans together
with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all
collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the Group. If, In a subsequent year, the amount of the
estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account.
If a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to finance costs in the income statement,

The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss Is the current
effective Interest rate.

Inventarles
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs are those expenses incurred In bringing

each product to its present location and condition, as follows:

= Raw materials, consumables and goods for resale — purchase cost on the basis of weighted average cost.

®  Workin progress - costs of direct materials and labour plus attributable
overheads based on a normal level of activity.
@ Finished goods - costs of direct materials and labour plus attributable

overheads based an a normal level of activity.

Net realisable value is based on estimated selling price less any further costs expected to be incurred on
completion and disposal.

Contract work in progress
Contract work in progress represents cost plus attributable profit less provision for foreseeable losses and progress
payments recelved and receivable,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2012

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents cansist of eash in hand,
bank balances, and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, net of outstanding bank
overdrafts.

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired (treasury shares) are recognised at cost and deducted from equity.
No gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated income statement on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of
the Company’s own equity instruments. Any difference between the carrying amount and the consideration is
recognised in other capital reserves.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financlal liabilities within the scope of I1AS 39 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.
The Group determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised Initially at fair value plus, in the case of mandatory convertible bands, term
loans and Islamic financing arrangements, directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, bank averdrafts, mandatory convertible bonds,
term loans and Islamic financing arrangements, and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabllities depends on their classification and Is described below:

Accounts payable and accruals
Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether billed by the
supplier or not.

Interest bearing loans & borrowings and Islamic financing arrangements
After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings and Islamic financing arrangements are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Mandatory convertible bond and subordinated loan facility
Mandatory convertible bond is separated into liability and equity components based on the terms of the bond.

On issuance of the mandatory convertible bond, the fair value of the liability component is determined by
discounting the future cash flows pertaining to the coupon payments using an estimated market interest rate for
an equivalent nan-convertible band. Fair value of derivative liahility, arising from a fixed range of variahility in the
number of shares to be issued to the bond holders is initially recognised at its fair value and subsequently
remeasured at each reporting date with the ehanges In falr value taken to the consolidated income statement,

The balance of the proceeds is allocated to the equity conversion pertion and recognised under a separate heading
under shareholders’ equity. On conversion at maturity, the par value of the ordinary shares Issued s recognised
under issued capital and any surplus recognised under share premium ar retained earnings.

Transaction costs are allocated between liability and equity camponents of the mandatory convertible band based
on allocation of initial proceeds from the bond between the liability and equity components.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2012

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Mandatory convertible bond and subordinated loan facility continued

For the subordinated loan facility, to the extent the facility represents a contractual arrangement to deliver cash ar
another financial asset, it is classified as a liability, with the balance of proceads being allocated to equity and
recognised under separate heading in shareholders’ equity. On conversion at maturity, the par value of the
ordinary shares issued Is recognised under issued capital and any surplus recognised under share premium or
retained earnings. Subordinated loan facility carrying interest rate below market rate is measured at fair value with
the balance of proceeds recognised under separate heading in shareholders’ equity.

Transaction costs are allocated between liability and equity components of the subordinated loan facility based on
allocation of initial proceeds from the facility between the liability and equity components.

Derecagnition

A financial liability is derecognised when the abligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially meodified, such an exchange or madification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the income statement,

When equity instruments are issued to extinguish all ar part of a financial liability (referred to as debt to equity
swaps), the equity instruments are recognised initially at the fair value of the equity instruments issued, unless
that fair value cannot be reliably measured. The difference between the fair value of the equity instruments issued
and the carrying amount of the extinguished financial liability is recognised in the income statement. In the case of
debt to equity swaps with a direct or indirect shareholders, the Company records the equity instruments issued at
the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished so that no profit or loss is recognised in the income
statement.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has an obligation (legal or canstructive) arising from a past event and
the cost to settle the obligation is both probable and able to be reliably measured.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease Is based an the substance of the
arrangement at inception date of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific
asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

Group as lessee

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the
leased item, are capitalised at the Inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, If lower, at the
present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and
reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a canstant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Finance charges are reflected in the consolidated income statement.

Capitalised leased assets are depreciated aver the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease
term, if there Is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the consolidated Income statement an a straight line
basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2012

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Leases continued

Group as lessor — Finance leases

Leases where the Group transfers substantially all of the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset through its
contractual arrangements to the customer are considered as a finance lease. The amounts due from the lessee are
recorded in the statement of financial position as financial assets (finance lease receivable) and are carried at the
amount of the net investment In the lease after making provision for impairment.

Group as lessor — Operating leases
Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all of the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are
classified as operating leases.

Employees’ end of service benefits

The Group provides end of service benefits to its expatriate employees. The entitlement to these benefits is based
upon the employees’ final salary and length of service, subject to the completion of a minimum service periad.
The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment.

With respect to its national employees, the Group makes cantributions to the relevant UAE Government pensian
scheme calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries. The obligations under these schemes are limited to
these contributions, which are expensed when due.

Share-based payment transactions

Qualifying employees of the Company receive part of their remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions. The employees are granted notional units of Company’s ordinary shares which are payable in cash
(‘cash-settled transactions’). The cost of the cash settled transactions is measured Initially at fair value at the grant
date based on the unit value determined by management of the Company or minimum guaranteed value,
whichever is higher. The cost of cash settled transactions is expensed to the consolidated Income statement or
capital work in progress, as applicable, in the year of grant with recognition of a corresponding liability. The liability
is remeasured at each reporting date up to and including the settlement date with changes In fair value, subject to
minimum guaranteed value, recognised in the consolidated income statement or capital work in progress, as
applicable.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps to hedge risks associated with interest
rate. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract |s entered into and are subsequently remeasured at falr value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the
fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value on derivatives during the year that do not qualify for hedge
accounting are taken directly to consolidated income statement.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

a cash flow hedges when hedging exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a
partleular risk associated with a recognised asset or liabllity or a firm commitment; or
o fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of an unrecognised firm

commitment.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to
which the Group wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management abjective and strategy for
undertaking the hedge.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2012

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Derivative financial instruments and hedging continued

The documentation includes identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item or transaction, the nature
of the risk being hedged and how the entity will assess the hedging instrument's effectiveness in offsetting the
exposure to changes in the hedged item’s cash flows or fair values, as applicable, attributable to the hedged risk.
Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in cash flaws or fair values, as
applicable, and are assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective
throughout the financial reporting periods for which they were designated.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised directly in the statement of
comprehensive income under the heading of “changes in fair value of derivatives”, while any Ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in the consolidated income statement,

Amounts recognised in the statement of comprehensive Income are transferred to the consolidated income
statement when the hedged transaction affects the consolidated income statement, such as when the hedged
Interest expense is recognised or when a forecast sale occurs.

On restructuring of the hedged item and revocation of hedging relationship, for an effective cash flow hedge, fair
value of the hedging Instrument as of the date of restructuring is recognised to income statement over the shorter
of remaining life of the original hedged item or hedging instrument.

Where the hedged item Is the cost of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability, the cumulative amounts
recognised in the statement of changes in equity are transferred to the initial carrying amount of the non financlal
asset or liability.

If the firm commitment is ne langer expected to occur, amounts previously recognised in equity are transferred to
consolidated income statement. If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without
replacement or rollover, or If Its designation as a hedge is revoked, amounts previously recognised in equity
remain in equity until the forecast transaction or firm commitment occurs.

Fair value hedges

The change in the fair value of a hedging derivative is recognised in the consolidated income statement. When an
unrecognised firm commitment is designated as a hedged item, the subsequent cumulative change in the fair
value of the firm commitment attributable to the hedged risk is recognised as an asset or liability with a
corresponding gain or loss recognised in the consolidated income statement. The changes in the fair value of the
hedging instrument are also recognised in the cansolidated income statement.

Fair value of financial instruments
Financial instruments comprise financial assets and financlal liabilities.

Financial assets comprise loan to an associate and a joint venture, trade and other receivables, finance lease
receivables, cash and short term deposits. Financial liabilities comprise payables, loans, liability compenent of
convertible bond and subordinated loan facility and finance lease liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2012

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Fair value of financial instruments continued

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active markets at each reporting date is determined by
reference to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price for short
positions), without any deduction for transaction costs. For investments where there is no active market, fair value
is determined using valuation techniques. Such techniques include using recent arm’s length market transactions;
reference to the current market value of another instrument which is substantially the same; discounted cash flow
analysis or other valuation madels,

An analysis of fair values of financial instruments and further details as to how they are measured are provided in
note 35.

Asset classifled as held for sale

Management classifies a non-current as held for sale when the carrying amount of the asset is expected to be
recovered through a sale transaction rather than continuing use. When the proposed sale transaction is no longer
expected to occur, the assets are transferred back to property, plant and equipment and measured at the lower of:

e its carrying amount before classification as held for sale, adjusted for any depreciation that would have
been recognised had the asset not been classified as held for sale, and
s its recoverable amount at the date of the subsequent change in sale plan.

2.6 FUTURE CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES — STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The following IASB Standard and amendments have been Issued but are not yet mandatory, and have not yet been
adopted by the Group:

- IAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income — Amendments to IAS 1
- IAS 19 Employee Benefits (Revised)

- IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (as revised in 2011)

- IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liahilities — Amendments to 1AS 32
- IFRS 1 Government Loans — Amendments to IFRS 1

- IFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities — Amendments to IFRS 7
- IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement

- IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements

- IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

- IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

. IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

- IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine

Improvements to IFRSs (Issued In May 2012)
The IASB issued Improvements to IFRSs, an omnibus of amendments to its IFRS standards. The amendments have

not been adopted as they become effective for annual periods on or after 1 January 2013. The amendments listed
below, are considered to have a reasonable possible impact on the Company:

. IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
. IAS 16 Property Plant and Equipment

s IAS 32 Financial Instruments, Presentation
° IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting

The Group Is currently assessing the Impact from the adoption of the above new and amended standards on its
financial position or performance.
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3 REVENUE
2012 2011
AED ‘000 AED 000
Supply of chilled water and operating revenue 690,727 663,988
Finance lease income (note 17) 121,710 99,625
Operating lease income 198,543 180,218
Contracting revenue 59,227 83,720
Manufacturing revenue 23,545 40,057
Services 34,986 46,963
1,128,738 1,114,571
4 OPERATING SEGMENTS

For management purposes, the Group is organised Into business units based on their products and services. The
two reportable operating segments are as follows:

= The ‘Chilled Water’ segment constructs, owns, assembles, installs, operates and maintains cooling and
conditioning systems. In addition, the segment distributes and sells chilled water for use in district
cooling technologies.
- The “Value chain business' segment is involved in ancillary activities relating to the expansion of the
Group'’s chilled water business (note 9).

Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss and is measured consistently with the Group'’s
operating profit or loss in the consolidated financial statements. However, Group financing (finance costs and
interest income) are managed on a group basis and are not allocated to operating segments.

Revenue
External revenue
Inter-segment revenue

Total revenue
Operating costs
Gross profit

Segment results

Finance costs

Changes in fair valua of
derivative liability and
other income

Finance Income

Share of results of
assoclates

Share of results of joint
venturas

Profit for the year

2012

Chilled  Value chain  Eliminations Total Chilled  Value chain  Eliminations Total
water business water business
AED000 AED000 AEDDOO AED'DO0 AEDO00 AED'O00 AED000 AED000
1,010,980 117,758 - 1,128,738 943,831 170,740 = 1,114,571
: 12,682 (12,682) ; : 96,236 (96,236) :
1,010,930 130,440 (12,682) 1,128,738 943,831 266,976 (96,236) 1,114,571
(536,483) (106,531) 14,877 (628,137) (537,761) (214,9860) 97,933 (654,788)
474,497 23,909 2,195 500,601 406,070 52,016 1,697 459,783
347,106 6,440 2,716 356,262 274,355 23,214 3,824 301,293
[186,849) - (219,861)
641 641 44,138 44,138
10,183 ; . 3,768
57,587 57,587 50,700 = 50,700
(3,579) (3,579) 1,448 = 1,448
234l255 181I536
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2012

a OPERATING SEGMENTS continuad
Inter-segment revenues are eliminated on consolidation.

Segment results include an amount of depraciation and amortisation allocated to the operating segments as
follows:

2012 2011
Chilled Value chain Total Chilled  Value chain Total
water business water business
AED000 AED000 AED'000 AED000 AED'0G0 AED000
Depreciation and amortisation 135,588 5,962 141,550 127,073 5,211 133,284
Segment assets and liabilities are as follows:
2012 2011
Chilled Value chain Unallocated Total Chilled Value chain Unollocated Total
water businass water business
AED'000 AEDD0O AEDDO0 AED'000 AED'000 AED'000 AED'000 AED'000
Sagment Assets 7,457,894 258,038 7,715,932 7,723,670 262,657 7,986,327
Investments In Assoclates 401,487 - 401,487 336,926 - 336,926
Investments in jeint ventures 1,427 1,427 4,334 * 4,334
Unallocated assets 373335 373,335 416,166 416,166
Total assets 7,860,808 258,038 373,335 8,492,181 8,064,930 262,657 416,166 8,743,753
Segment liabilities 641,325 88,269 . 729,594 1,066,146 93,909 - 1,160,085
Unallocatad liabilities - - 3,335,996 3,335,996 - 3,669,615 3,669,615
Total Uabllities 641,325 88,269 3,335,996 4,065,590 1,066,146 93,909 3,669,615 4,829,670

Unallocated assets represent bank deposits of AED 373,335 thousand (2011: AED 416,166 thousand) as these
assets are managed on a group basis.

Unallocated liabilities represent Interest bearing loans and borrowings of AED 2,115,907 thousand (2011:
AED 2,183,732 thousand), Islamie financing arrangements of AED 528,684 thousand (2011; AED 538,206
thousand), obligations under finance lease of AED 33,476 thousand (2011: AED 37,817 thousand), mandatary
convertible bond — liability component of AED 657,929 thousand (2011: AED 393,447 thousand) and subordinated
loan facility — liability component of AED nil (2011: AED 516,413 thousand).

2012 2011
Chilled Value chain Total Chilled Value chain Tatal
water business water business
AEDOO0 AED00O AED00D AEDDDO AEDDOO AEDDO0
Capital expenditure:
Property, plant and equipment 2,301 140 2,441 2,710 210 2,970
Capitsl work in progress 75,708 75,705 452,518 452,518
Investment in an associate 18,639 18,639 -
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4 OPERATING SEGMENTS continued

Geographic information

The following tables present certain non-current assets and revenue infarmation relating to the Group based on

geographical location of the operating units:

United Arab Emirates
Others

Revenue Non-current assets
2012 2011 2012 2011
AED ‘o000 AED ‘000 AED ‘000 AED 000
1,096,565 1,081,599 6,256,880 6,296,066
32173 32,972 450,049 453,941
1,128,738 1,114,571 6,706,929 6,750,007

For this purpose, non-current assets comprise of capital work in progress, property, plant and equipment, finance

lease receivables and intangible assets.

Revenue from external customers

The following table provides information relating to the Group’s major customers which contribute more than 10%

towards the Group's revenue,

2012 2011
Chilled Value chain Total Chlited Value chain Total
water business water business
AED000 AED000 AEDD00 AED‘000 AED000 AED00D
Customer 1 308,211 49,227 357,438 262,442 49,798 312,238
Customer 2 261,717 - 261,717 212,991 - 212,991
Customer 3 121,364 : 121,364 105,287 - 105,287
691,292 49,227 740,519 580,720 49,796 630,516
5 FINANCE COSTS
2012 2011
AED 000 AED 000
Gross interest charge for the year 186,849 225,222
Less: Interest capitalised during the year (note 10) = (5,361)
Interest charged to income statement during the year 186,849 219,361
Interest charged to income statement comprises of:
Interest on interest bearing loans and borrowings, overdrafts and
Interest rate swaps 112,940 124,880
Rental charges on Islamic financing arrangements 14,617 52,322
Interest element of finance lease 3,408 3,796
Other finance costs 55,884 38,863
186,849 219,861
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6 PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS
6.1 Operating costs
2012 2011
AED ‘000 AED ‘000
Costs of Inventories recognised as an expense 20,698 30,322
Contract costs 58,759 70,777
Depreclation (note 11) 136,600 127,106
Utility costs 263,609 264,969
Purchase of chilled water from a related party (note 31) 90,175 89,904
Chiller rental costs 5,554 26,460
Others 52,742 45,250
628,137 654,788
6.2 Administrative and other expenses
2012 2011
AED ‘000 AED ‘000
Staff costs 95,869 98,853
Depreciation and amortisation (note 11 & 14) 8,800 6,178
{Reversal) Provision for doubtful debts (note 18) (227) 2,474
Other administrative and general expenses 39,897 50,885
144,339 158,390
7 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE

PARENT

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, plus the weighted
average numbher of ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of mandatory convertible bond (note

27).

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent (after adjusting for accretion on subordinated loan facility = liahility component) by the
welghted average number of ordinary shares used to calculate basic earnings per share, plus the weighted average
number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of all dilutive potantial ordinary shares into

ordinary shares (note 27).
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7 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE

PARENT continued

The following reflects the profit and share data used In the basic and diluted earnings per share computations:

Profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent for basic earnings (AED "000)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (excluding treasury shares)
outstanding during the year ("000)

Effect of mandatory convertible bond (‘000)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (excluding treasury shares)
adjusted for the effect of mandatory convertible bond ('000)

Basic earnings per share (AED)

2012 2011
236,351 182,705
657,047 498,746

2,312,382 1,503,952

2,969,429 2,002,698

0.08 0.09

Basic earnings per share has been calculated on the basis of maximum number of shares that may be issued for

mandatory convertible bond (note 27).

Profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the parent for basic earnings (AED ‘000)

Accretion on subordinated loan facility- Tranche B (‘000)

Profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the parent for diluted earnings (AED ‘000)

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for basic earnings per share ('000)
Effect of dilution for subordinated loan facility Tranche B (‘000)

Welghted average number of ordinary shares
adjusted for the effect of dilution (‘000)

Diluted earnings per share (AED)

2012 2011
236,351 182,705
14,865 5,568
251,216 188,273
2,969,429 2,002,698
165,202 142,492
3,334,631 2,145,190
0.08 0.09

At 31 December 2012, The Subordinated Bridge Loan facility Tranche A was rolled over in to Mandatory Convertible
Bond and Tranche B was settled through the issue of Mandatary Convertible Bond (Note 27).

8 ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

During the year, the Company changed its plan to sell the property, plant and equipment previously classified as
held for sale, Accordingly, the carrying amount of the plant and the related distribution network amounting to

AED 103.3 million, has been reclassified to ‘property, plant and equipment’ as of 31 December 2012.
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9 SUBSIDIARIES

The consolidated financlal statements include the financial statements of the Company and the subsidiaries listed
in the following table:

Country of  Percentage of holding  Principal activities
Incorporation 2012 2011
Chilled water segment;

Natlonal Central Cooling Company Ras Al Khaimah LLC UAE 100 100 Salling of chilled water

Summit Distrlct Cooling Company UAE 100 100 Selling of chilled water

Bahrain District Cooling Company Bahrain 90 90 Selling of chilled water

Tabreed Oman SAQC Oman 60 60 selling of chilled water

Tabreed LLC Oman Oman 100 100 Selling of chilled water

Tabreed Operation & Maintenance Zones

Cooling Stations Company LLC UAE 100 100 Operation and maintenance of plants

Sahara Cooling and Alr Conditioning LLC UAE 51 51 Act as the commercial representative of Sahara

Cooling Limited, an associate (note 12)
Value chain business segment;

Gulf Energy Systems LLC UAE 100 100 Construction of secondary networks

Emirates Preinsulated Pipes Industries LLC UAE 60 60 Manufacturing of pre-insulated pipes

Installation Integrity 2000 LLC UAE 100 100 Commissioning and engineering services

CoolTech Energy Water Treatment LLC UAE 100 100 Water treatment services and selling chillad
water related products

fan Banham and Associates UAE 70 70 Design and supervision cansultaney

Installation Integrity 2006 WLL Qatar 71 71 Commissioning and engineering services

Others - Unallocated
Tabreed Captive Insurance Company B.5.C. Bahrain z 100 Engages in reinsurance business for the Group
Tabreed Holdings WLL Bahrain 100 100 Act as a holding company

In accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors, Tabreed Captive Insurance Company B.5.C. was dissolved
during the year at book value resulting in no gain or loss.

10 CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS

The movement in capital work in progress during the year is as follows;

2012 2011

AED 000 AED ‘000

Balance at 1 January 461,586 903,700
Additions during the year 75,705 452,518
Transfer to finance lease receivable (note 17) - (435,000)
Transfer to property, plant and equipment, net of impairment (note 11) (428,781) (459,632)
108,510 461,586

Advances to contractors 2,319 4,549
Balance at 31 December after provision for impairment 110,829 466,135

Included in additions to capital work in progress are capitalised financing costs ameunting to AED nil (2011: AED §
million).

Refer note 11 for indicators of impairment and testing of cash generating units.
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11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Office
Equipment
Land, plant Distributlon Furniture and dand
and buildings netwark fixtures Instruments  Maotar vehicles Total
AFD000 AfD00 AEDDOD AEDT00 AEDD0D AEDD0D
2012
Costy
At 1January 2012 3,723,475 2,125,448 12,679 11,221 1,235 5,994,058
Additions 1,089 . 5 1,149 - 2,441
Transfer from capltal work In progress {notel0) 332,748 44,271 - 1,762 - 428,781
Reimbursemant from customer and contractor (61,225) {15,250) - - - (76,485)
Asset classified under held for sale {note 8) 33,951 19,923 - - - 112,874
Dizposals {7,073) - - - - {7,073}
At 31 Decembar 2012 4,141,935 2 382 12,912 34,132 1,235 s,nu,su‘i'
Oepreclation:
At 1January 2012 373,608 115,867 11,373 15,835 1,166 528,850
Depreclation for the year 102,939 39,089 714 2,607 51 145,400
Aszet classified under held for sale (note 8) 8,151 1,424 - - - 5,577
Disposals {7,073) - - - - {7.073)
At 31 Dacombier 2012 477,625 156,382 12,088 19,442 :l,:li;- 676,754
Met carrying amount before provision fer impairment:
At 31 December 2012 3,664,310 2,108,000 uz24 4,590 13 5,777,842
Pravision for Impairment at 1 January 2012
and 31 December 2012 483,293 355,448 = Hi8,747
Net carrying amount after provision for impalrment:
At 31 December 2012 3,181,011 'l,l.‘.lﬂ w24 4,690 13 4,933,085
— —
2011
Cost;
At 1 Janusry 2011 3,625,576 1,976,326 11,637 30,475 1,673 5,646,687
Additions 1587 - 587 746 - 2,920
Transfer from capital work In progress (note 10) 183,765 269,867 - - - 459,632
Asset clazsified under held for sale {note 8) {9z,351) [19,923) - - - (112,874)
Disposals (s02) {a22) {545) ¥ {aas) {2,307)
At 31 Decembar 2011 3,723,478 2,235,448 12,673 31,221 1,235 5,004,058
Depreclation;
At 1January 2012 189,313 81,855 10,964 22,826 1,461 406,419
Depreciation for the year 92,658 35,660 L1 4,008 100 133,282
Aszet classified under held for sale {note 8) {8,151) [1,426) - - . (3,577}
Depraciation relating to dispasals (212) {222) (A45) {385 (1,274}
At 31 Dacambar 2011 373,608 115,867 11,374 26,835 1,166 528450
Net carrying amaunt before provision for impalrmient:
At 31 December 2011 3,339,867 2,109,581 1,305 4386 [£] 5,465,208
Provisian Taf impairment at 1 January 2011
and 31 Decambar 2011 483,293 355,443 = B3s.7a7
Net carrying amount after provision for Impaliment:
At 31 December 2011 2, BE8, 560 1,754,133 1i3D5 4,386 63 4,626,461
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11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT continued
The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:
2012 2011
AED ‘000 AED ‘000
Included in operating costs (note 6.1) 136,600 127,106
Included in administrative and other expenses (note 6.2) 8,800 6,176
145,400 133,282

Property, plant and equipment with a carrying amount of AED 889.9 million (2011: AED 846.1 million), together
with the customer receivables associated with these plants have been pledged as security for the interest bearing
loans and borrowings and Islamic financing arrangements (notes 25 and 26).

Net book value of plant amounting to AED 45,1 million (2011: AED 47.5 million) are held under finance lease. The
leased assets are pledged as security for the related finance lease liability (note 28).

The management undertakes an annual strategic review of all its projects with the view of assessing the Impact of
any internal or external factors on the recoverable amount of the Group's property, plant and equipment and
capital work in progress.

The Company applies the value in use methodology using cash flow projections to estimate the recoverahle
amount of its property, plant and equipment and capital work In progress approved by the Company's
management and Board of Diractors.

The calculation of value in use is most sensitive in the following judgements and assumptions:

Identification of cash generating units;
Estimated use of the plant measured by its Equivalent Full Load Hours (EFLH) defined as annual ton-hours
of cooling actually supplied divided by the supplying chiller's design capacity in tons;
Amount and timing of revenue relating to capacity of the plant,
a. contracted but not connected at year end; and
h. not connected at year end;
Inflation rate (3%) used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the period of the initial agreement with the
respective customer;
Cost of construction relating to plant and equipment under construction based on contracts signed to date
and estimate of cost required to complete;
Discount rate based on the Company’s WACC of 8.5% (2011: 8.5%); and
Terminal value of distribution assets and bulildings.

Revenue estimates are based on discussions with existing and potential custamers. Cash inflows are based on the
term of the existing contracts with the respective customers extended to the period of the remaining useful life of
the plant.
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12 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

The Company has the following investments in associates:

Industrial City Cooling Company

Qatar Central Cooling Company PISC
Tabreed District Cooling Company (Saudi)
Sahara Cooling Limited

Cool Tech Qatar

Country of incorporation

United Arab Emirates
State of Qatar

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

United Arab Emirates
State of Qatar

Maovement in investment in associates is as follows:

At 1 January

Share of results for the year
Additions during the year
Dividends received

Share of changes in fair value of effective cash flow hedges

At 31 December

Ownership
2012 2011
20% 20%
44% 44%
25% 25%
40% 40%
49% 49%
2012 2011
AED ‘000 AED 000
336,926 298,041
57,012 44,520
18,639 -
(11,554) -
464 (5,635)
401,487 336,926

The associates are involved in the same business activity as Tabreed, except Cool Tech Qatar which Is invalved in
selling evaporative cooling equipment and related products. The reporting dates for the associates are Identical to

Tabreed.

During the year, the Company made an additional investment of AED 18.6 millien in Tabreed District Cooling
Company (Saudi), to contribute to its share in increase in share capital required for a specific project.

The following illustrates summarised information of Tabreed's investments In assoclates:

Share of the assaciates’ statement of financial position:

Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Loan from shareholders

Net assets

Share of the associates’ revenues and rasults:

Revenues

Results (as adjusted by profit resulting from transactions between the Company and

the associates amounting to AED 0.6 million (2011: AED 6.2 million)

2012 2011
AED ‘000 AED ‘000
208,790 167,401
949,631 844,880
(209,319) (135,793)
{547,615) (535,200)
- (3,662)
401,487 336,926
163,493 152,759
57,587 50,700

Net assets of associates include the Company’s share of negative fair value of derivatives of associates amounting to

AED 19 million (2011: AED 19.4 million).
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13 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

The Company has the following investments in jeint ventures:

Country of Incorporation
SNC Lavalin Gulf Contractors LLC United Arab Emirates
S&T Cool District Cooling Company LLC United Arab Emirates

2012

51%
50%

l fn B |

] G
: <
| | tabreed
Ownership
2011
51%
50%

SNC Lavalin Gulf Contractors LLC (SLGC), a limited liability company is involved in engineering, procurement,

construction and construction management In the field of District Cooling.

S&T Cool District Cooling Company LLC, a limited liability company, incorporated in Emirate of Abu Dhabi, is

invalved in the same business activity as Tabreed.
The reporting date for the joint ventures is identical to Tabreed.

Movement in investments in joint ventures is as follows:

At 1 January

Share of results for the year
Adjustments for Inter group transactions
At 31 December

Share of the joint ventures’ revenues and profits:
Revenues

(Loss) profit for the year

The following illustrates summarised information of Tabreed's investments in joint ventures.

Tabreed's share of the assets and llabllities of the Joint ventures are as follows:
Current assets
MNon-current assets

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Loan from shareholders

Total net assets

2012 2011
AED ‘000 AED ‘000
4,334 3,142
(3,579) (95)
672 1,287
1,427 4,334
17,263 53,435
(3,579) 1,448
2012 2011
AED ‘000 AED ‘000
65,526 135,096
164,095 158,962
229,621 294,058
(48,175) {151,161)
(123,475) (82,013)
(56,544) (56,544)
1,427 4,334
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14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill Trademarks Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
AED ‘000 AED ‘000 AED ‘000 AED ‘000 AED ‘000 AED ‘000
Balance at 1 January 37,596 37,596 - 2 37,596 37,598
Amartisation for the year - - - (2) - (2)_
Balanee at 31 December 37,596 37,556 2, 2 37,596 37,596
15 IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL
Carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the cash generating units is as follows:
2012 2011
AED ‘000 AED ‘000
lan Banham & Associates 27,711 27,711
UAE Armed Forces 9,712 9,712
Other 173 o 173
Total 37,596 37,596

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been allocated to the following main individual cash-
generating units, for impairment testing:

s lan Banham & Associates cash-generating unit relating to goodwill arising from acquisition of equity
interest in lan Banham & Associates; and

. UAE Armed Forces cash generating unit relating to goodwill arising froem acquisition of Gulf Energy
Systems.

lan Banham & Associates

The recoverable amount of the lan Banham & Associates unit has been determined based on a value in use
calculation using revenue and cost cash flow projections approved hy the board of directors covering a five-year
period ending 31 December 2017. The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 25% (2011: 25%).
Revenue is earned from project supervision and study and design contracts. The revenue in the five year cash flow
model reflects management estimates of projected revenue on a conservative basis. Contract costs primarily
represent salarles and related benefits of technical staff such as engineers and other administrative costs. Such
costs are included in the model based on current expected market trend. The cash flow projections include an
estimate of terminal value based on inflation related growth rate of 3% (2011: 3%).

UAE Armed Forces cash generating unit

The recoverable amount of the UAE Armed Forces cash generating unit Is determined based on a value in use
calculation using cash flow projections. Revenue comprises of available capacity and variable gutput based on a
signed contract with customer for a period of 20 years. The management Is confident that the current 20 year
contract with the customer will be extended for the remaining useful life of the plant. The operating costs mainly
represent cost of utilities to operate the plants in the cash generating unit and salarles and related benefits of staff
and are determined based on management’s approved financial forecast. The discount rate applied to the cash
flow projections is 8.5 % (2011: 8.5%) representing the Company’s weighted average cost of capital.

Given the headroom in the cash flow projections, management believes no reasonable change in the revenue, cost
and discount rate assumptions would cause the carrying amount of goodwill to he impaired.
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16 LOANS TO AN ASSOCIATE AND A JOINT VENTURE

2012 2011
AED 000 AED ‘000
Loan to an associate (note i) - 3,662
Loan to a joint venture (note Ii) 56,544 56,544
56,544 60,206
Analysed in the consolidated statement of financlal position as follows:

2012 2011
AED ‘000 AED 000
Current - 3,662
Non-current 56,544 56,544
56,544 60,206

(i) The loan has been completely paid-off in the current year. It was granted to Sahara Cooling Limited, an

associate campany.
(ii) The Company has granted a loan of AED 56.5 million to S&T District Cooling Company LLC, a joint venture,

The loan is unsecured and interest free. The amount is not expected to be repaid within twelve maonths

from the reporting date.

17 FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

Maovement in the finance lease receivables during the year is as follows:

At 1 January

Transfers from capital work In progress during the year (note 10)

Revisions to finance lease receivable on extenslon of lease term credited to
consolidated statement of income

Finance lease income (note 3)

Lease rentals received

At 31 December

Analysed in the consolidated statement of financial position as follows:

Current assets
Non-current assets

2012 2011
AED ‘000 AED ‘000
1,726,115 1,276,495
- 435,000

3,219 .
121,710 99,625
(110,676) (85,005)
1,740,363 1,726,115
120,959 106,300
1,619,409 1,619,815
1,740,368 1,726,115
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17 FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES continued

Transfer of AED 435 million from capital work in progress to finance lease receivable during 2011 related to plant
and equipment transferred on commencement of lease relating to an existing customer on the commissioning of

related plants and distribution network.

Future minimum lease recejvables under finance leases together with the present value of the net minimum lease

receivables are as follows:

2012 2011
Minimum Present Minimum Present
lease value of lease value of
receivables minimum recefvables minimum
lease lease
AED 000 AED "000 AED 000 AED ‘000
Within one year 125,395 120,959 110,676 106,300
After one but no more than five years 503,549 408,441 501,326 407,222
More than five years 3,297,535 1,210,968 3,405,739 1,212,593
3,926,479 1,740,368 4,017,741 1,726,115
Unearned revenue (note i) (2,186,111) (2,291,626) -
1,740,368 1,740,368 1,726,115 1,726,115
(i) Movement in unearned revenue is as follows:
2012 2011
AED ‘000 AED 000
At 1 January 2,291,626 1,784,345
Relating to new and extended finance leases 16,195 606,906
Recognised during the year (note 3) (121,710) (99,625)
At 31 December 2,186,111 2,291,626

No unguaranteed residual value to the benefit of the lessor Is assumed for the purpose of the above calculation.

18 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND PREPAYMENTS

2012 2011

AED ‘000 AED 000

Trade receivables 425,442 418,215
Amounts due from related parties (note 31) 58,123 282,120
Advances to contractors and employees 14,990 25,569
Deposits and other receivables 51,576 53,958
Prepayments 8,135 8,610
558,266 788,472

As at 31 December 2012, trade receivables with a nominal value of AED 15.5 million (2011: AED 23.9 million) were
impalired and fully provided for. Movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables were as follows:

37



=)\

L: Y
National Central Cooling Company PJSC ([ ]] tabreed
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2012
18 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND PREPAYMENTS continued
2012 2011
AED ‘000 AED ‘000
At 1 January 23,968 29,102
Charge for the year (note 6.2) 3,373 2,474
Reversed during the year (note 6.2) (3,600) -
Amounts written off (8,191) (7,608)
At 31 December 15,550 23,968

As at 31 December, the ageing analysis of unimpaired trade receivables and amounts due from related parties is as
follows:

Past due but not Impaired
Neither past
due nor 30-60 60—-290 50-120 120-365 >365
Total impalred < 30 days days days days days duys
AEDO00 AED'000 AED'000 AED'000 AEDQO0 AED'GO0 AEDQOO AED000
2012 483,565 168,736 70,566 46,228 19,207 11,158 65,999 101,671
2011 700,335 163,236 61,883 46,743 53,892 58,423 151,224 164,928

Unimpaired receivables are expected on the basis of past experience, to be fully recoverable. It is not the practice
of the Group to obtain collateral over recelvables and the vast majority are therefore, unsecured.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 — 60 days terms. Fer terms and conditions
relating to related party receivables, refer to note 31.

19 CONTRACT WORK IN PROGRESS

2012 2011

AED ‘000 AED 000

Cost plus attributable profit 59,227 166,486
Less: progress billings (6,951) _ {118,181}
52,276 48,305
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20 CASH AND SHORT TERM DEPOSITS

Cash and cash equivalents included in the consolidated statement of cash flows include the following consolidated
statement of financial position amounts;

2012 2011

AED ‘000 AED ‘000

Bank balances and cash 187,082 95,331
Bank deposits 373,335 416,166
560,417 511,997

Bank deposits attract a fixed rate of interest ranging from 0.15% to 3.01% per annum (2011: 0.5% to 3.6% per
annum) and are held for tenure of less than 3 months (2011: same).

Geographical concentration of cash and short term deposits is as follows:

2012 2011
AED ‘000 AED ‘000
Within UAE 539,649 482,402
Qutside UAE 20,768 29,595
560,417 511,997
21 ISSUED CAPITAL

2012 2011
AED 000 AED ‘000

Authorised, issued and fully paid up share capital
Ordinary shares of 659,063,447 (2011: 659,063,447) at AED 1 each 659,063 659,063

22 TREASURY SHARES

The Company set up an employee incentlve scheme in accordance with the Board of Directors resolution dated
17 December 2000, and contributed to a shareholder for the purchase of the Company’s ordinary shares and to act
as a custodian for such shares. The Company retains the significant risks and rewards associated with those
shares.
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23 RESERVES

Statutory reserve

As regulred by the UAE Commercial Companies Law of 1984 (as amended) and the articles of association of the
Company, 10% of the profit for the year is transferred to the statutory reserve. The Company may resolve to
discontinue such transfers when the reserve equals 50% of the issued capital. The reserve is not available for
distribution.

Other reserve

This represents amounts transferred on repurchase of MCB 08 on 19 May 2011 through delivery of 415,683,447
shares. AED 1,145.2 million represents difference between the total of liability and equity companents
extinguished and shares |ssued. The reserve also includes an amount of AED 8,671 thousand created on settlement
of subordinated loan facility - Tranche B into mandatory convertible bonds during the year (note 27)

24 ADVANCES FROM A RELATED PARTY

These represent advances received from a customer relating to funding support for the canstruction of property,
plant and equipment (note 31). During the year, an amount of AED 326.1 million has set been set off against amounts
due from the customer in accordance with an agreement with the customer.

25 INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS
Effective interest 2012 2011
rate % AED ‘000 AED 000
Term loan 1- Facllity A (Note 1) EIBOR + margin 758,594 820,416
Term loan 1- Facility B (Note 1) EIBOR + margin 1,192,481 1,187,378
Term loan 4 EIBOR + margin E 3,000
Term loan s 3% 7,351 8,576
Term loan 6 LIBOR + margin 157,481 184,362
2,115,307 2,183,732
Analysed in the consolidated statement of financial position as follows:
2012 2011
AED ‘000 AED 000
Current pertion 135,381 72,811
Non-current partion 1,980,526 2,110,921
2,115,907 2,183,732

Note 1 Syndicate loan facility

Term loan 1 represents facilities obtained as result of a refinancing of the Company’s debt in 2011, in the form of
term loan facilities A and B comprising of five individual conventional / Islamic tranches, with total amount of AED
1 billion and AED 1.6 billian, respectively. Both of these carry interest / rental rates of EIBOR plus a margin,
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25 INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS continued

Note 1 Syndicate loan facility continued

The facility A is repayable in 13 equal semi-annual instalments amounting to AED 76.9 million (AED 65.1 million
representing Interest bearing loans and borrowings and AED 11.8 million towards Islamic financing arrangements)
commencing from 31 December 2012 with the last instalment due on 31 March 2019. Facility B Is repayable in a
bullet payment on 31 March 2019.

A revolving facility of AED 150 million extended to the Group is to be utilised in the form of issuance of
documentary credits and drawing cash advances up to an amount of AED 75 million, out of which an amount of
AED 90 million (2011: AED 90 million) (cash advances of AED nil (2011: AED nil)) has been utilised by the Company
as of 31 December 2012. The revolving facility carries interest at 0.58% to 1.75% for issuance of documentary
credits and EIBOR plus a margin on cash drawings and is repayable on 31 March 2019 with an annual clean down
of no more than AED 5 million of cash advances made.

Interest on the above facilities is payable in cash on a quarterly basis. The facilities are secured against plants,
equipment and trade debtors.

Term loan 6 relating to a subsidiary borrowing is repayable in 22 semi annual instalments starting 2008.

26 ISLAMIC FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS
Profit charge % 2012 2011
AED '000 AED ‘000
Islamic financing arrangement 1 facility A (Note 25) EIBOR + margin 137,385 148,573
Islamic financing arrangement 1 facility B (Note 25) EIBOR + margin 391,299 389,633
528,684 538,206

Analysed in the consolidated statement of financial position as follows:

2012 2011

AED ‘000 AED ‘000

Current portion 22,894 11,110
Non-current portion 505,790 527,096
528,684 538,206
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27 MANDATORY CONVERTIBLE BOND (MCB) AND SUBORDINATED LOAN FACILITY (SBL)
Mandatory convertible bond MCB-1

The mandatory convertible bond (“MCB-1") was issued on 1 April 2011 in the form of trust certificates for a total
value of AED 1,700 million, maturing in March 2019,

MCB-1 carries interest at a fixed rate of 6% per annum, settled in kind by compounding into the principal amount
on annual basis during the period from Inception to 31 December 2012, and carries a cash coupon of 4% per
annum from 1 January 2013 to maturity payable in arrears on a quarterly basis.

The MCB-1 shall be converted upon maturity into ordinary shares of the Company based on a fixed exchange ratio
of 1,1259. The bond is subordinated in right of payment to the claims of creditors of the Company.

Transaction costs in connection with the issuance of the MCB-1 on inception amounted to AED 29.1 million.

The liability component of MCB-1 amounting to AED 410.3 million (2011:393.4 million) net of transaction cost,
represents present value of cash coupon payable during the period from 1 January 2013 till maturity, discounted at
a market rate of 4% which is determined on the basis of a bond with similar terms and conditions, but without the
condition of mandatory conversion into ordinary shares at the redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds from MCB-1 amounting to AED 1,473 million (2011: AED 1,366 million) net of
transaction cost, have heen recognised as the equity component of MCB-1 and adjusted for the settlement in kind
of the coupon amounting to AED 106.6 million during the year (2011; AED 76.5 million)

Rellover of sub-ardinated laan facility {Tranche A) and issuance of mandatory convertible bond MCB-1C

In addition to MCB-1, the Group on 1 April 2011 secured AED 702 million of new, committed long term capital
from MDC In the form of a subordinated loan facility (Tranche A) and AED 400 million in the form of a
subordinated loan facility (Tranche B).

Tranche A matured on 31 December 2012 and till that date, carried a fixed interest rate of 2% per annum
amounting to AED 14.2 millien ( 2011; AED 4.2 million) settled in kind by compounding into the principal amount
an a semi annual basls and Included under equity. The Company settled Tranche A by rolling it into a mandatory
convertible bond ("MCB-1C") issued In the form of trust certificates for a total value of AED 720 million, maturing
in March 2019.

MCB-1C carries a cash coupon of 4% per annum from 1 January 2013 to 31 March 2019, payable in arrears on a
quarterly basis and will be converted Into ardinary shares of the Campany based on a fixed exchange ratio of
1.1259.

The bond is subordinated in right of payment to the claims of creditors of the Company.

The liability component of MCB-1C amounting to AED 156.9 million represents present value of cash coupen
payable during the period from 1 January 2013 till maturity, discounted at a market rate of 4% which is determined
on the basis of a bond with similar terms and conditions, but without the condition of mandatory conversion into
ordinary shares at the redemption,

During the year, the remainder of the proceeds from SBL A amounting to AED 559.9 million (2011: 545.8 million)
adjusted for settlement in kind of coupon amounting to AED 14.2 million (2011: AED 4.2 million) that was
previously recognised as equity component has been rolled aver into MCB-1C.
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27 MANDATORY CONVERTIBLE BOND (MCB) AND SUBORDINATED LOAN FACILITY {5BL) continued

Settlement of sub-ordinated loan facility (Tranche B) by means of issuance of mandatory convertible bond MCB-
1A and MCB-1C

On 31 December 2012, the total of the principal along with coupon in kind of Tranche B amounted to AED 411
million as of 31 December 2012 was settled by issuing mandatory convertible bond ("MCB-1A") and mandatory
convertible bond ("MCB-1C") In the form of trust certificates for a total value of AED 226 million and AED 185
million respectively both maturing in March 2019.

MCB-1A and MCB-1C carry a cash coupon of 4% per annum from 1 January 2013 to 31 March 2019, payable in
arrears on a quarterly basis and will be converted into ordinary shares of the Company based on a fixed exchange
ratjo of 1.1259, The bond is subordinated in right of payment to the claims of creditors of the Company.

The liability component of the MCB-1 A and MCB-1C of AED 90.7 milllon represents present value of cash coupon
payable during the period from 1 January 2013 till maturity, discounted at a market rate of 4% which is determined
on the basis of a bond with similar terms and conditions, but without the condition of mandatory conversion inta
ordinary shares at the redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds from MCB-1A and MCB-1C amounting to AED 320.5 million have been recognlised
as the equity component of MCB-1A and MCB-1C.

Mandatory convertible bond (MCB-1)

Lighility Equity

campenent component Total

AED ‘000 AED 000 AED ‘000

Balance at 1 January 2012 393,447 1,366,135 1,759,582
Accretion expense 15,980 - 15,980
Amortisation of transaction costs 876 - B76
Coupan settled In kind - 106,590 106,590
Balance at 31 December 2012 410,303 1,472,725 1,883,028

Subordinated loan facility - Tranche A

Liability Equity
component component Total
AED ‘000 AED ‘000 AED 000
Balance at 1 January 2012 150,482 545,756 696,238
Accretion expense 6,114 - 6,114
Amortisation of transaction costs 311 - 311
Coupon settled in kind - 14,195 14,195
Settled by Issuance of MCB-1C (156,907) _(559,951) (716,858)
Balance at 31 December 2012 3 " 2

Subordinated loan facility — Tranche B

Liability Equity
campanent component Total
AED ‘000 AED 000 AED ‘000
Balance at 1 January 2012 365,931 33,354 399,285
Accretion expense 14,865 - 14,865
Amortisation of transaction costs 5,702 - 5,702
Transferred to other reserves (9,252) 581 (8,671)
Settled by issuance of MCB-1A and MCB-1C (377,246) (33,935) (411,181)

Balance at 31 December 2012 z - =
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27 MANDATORY CONVERTIBLE BOND (MCB) AND SUBORDINATED LOAN FACILITY (SBL) continued

Settlement of sub-ordinated loan facility (Tranche B) by means of Issuance of mandatory convertible bond MCB-

1A and MCB-1C

Issued during the year

Balance at 31 December 2012

Issued during the year

Balance at 31 December 2012

Total balance of MCB at 31 December 2012

Total balance of MCB-1 and SBL at 31 December 2011

Allocated to the bonds as follows:

MCB-1 (representing 1,672,519,762 shares at AED 1 each)
MCB-1C (representing 639,862,459 shares at AED 1 each)
MCB-1A & 1C (representing 365,202,112 shares at AED 1 each)

Mandatory convertible bond {MCB-1A)

Liability Equity
component component Total
AED ‘000 AED 000 AED ‘000
90,719 320,462 411,181
90,719 320,462 411,181

Mandatary convertible bond (MCB-1C)

Liability Equity
component campanent Total
AED 000 AED ‘000 AED ‘000
156,907 559,951 716,858
156,907 55,9951 716,858
657,929 2,353,138 3,011,067
909,360 1,945,245 2,855,105
410,303 1,472,725 1,883,028
156,907 559,951 716,858
90,719 320,462 411,181
657,929 2,353,138 3,011,067

Liability components of mandatory canvertible bonds and subordinated loan facility at 31 December are analysed

in the consolidated statement of financial position as follows:

Current
Non —current

2012 2011
AED ‘000 AED 000
112,799 :
545,130 909,860
657,929 909,860
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28 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASE

During 2006, the Company entered into a sale and lease back agreement with a third party relating to certain
plants (note 11) for an amount of AED 55.8 million. The lease carries Interest at an effective rate of 9.5% per
annum and is repayable in monthly instalments over a period of 12 years.

Future minimum lease payments under finance leases together with the present value of the minimum lease
payments are as follows:

2012 2011
Minimum Present Minimum Present
lease value of lease value of
payments payments payments payments
AED ‘000 AED ‘000 AED 000 AED ‘000
Within one year 7,749 7,364 7,743 7,364
After one year but not more than five years 30,994 23,384 30,994 23,334
After five years 4,505 2,728 12,254 7,069
43,248 33,476 50,997 37,817
Less: amounts representing finance charges (9.772) 5 (13,180) 3
Present value of minimum lease payments 33,476 33,476 37,817 37,817

The finance lease liability s classified in the consolidated statement of financial position as follows:

2012 2011

AED ‘000 AED ‘000

Current 7,364 7,364
Non-current 26,112 30,453
33,476 37,817

29 EMPLOYEES' END OF SERVICE BENEFITS

The Company provides for employees’ end of service benefits in respect of its expatriate employees in accordance
with the employees’ contracts of employment. The movements in the provision recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position are as follows:;

2012 2011

AED ‘000 AED ‘000

Balance at 1 January 17,090 14,971
Net movement during the year 459 2,119
Balance at 31 December 17,549 17,090
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30 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUALS

2012 2011
AED "000 AED ‘000
Non-current liabilities
Retentions payable for capital expenditure - 13,233
Retentions payable for nen-capital expenditure 6,280 4,851
Other payables 23,378 23,378
29,658 28,229
29,658 41,462
Current liabilities
Relating to capital expenditure;
Contractor payable and retentions 100,337 127,976
Accrued expenses and provisions 81,974 162,709
182,311 290,685
Others:
Accounts payable 54,460 68,607
Due to related parties — associates (note 31) 30,707 33,241
Accrued expenses 147,440 119,680
Other payables 193,600 189,290
T 426,207 410,818
608,518 701,503

Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:
Accounts payable and other financial liabilities are non-interest bearing and are narmally settled on 60 day terms.

Retentions payable are non interest bearing and are normally settled in accordance with the terms of the
contracts.

For terms and conditions relating to related parties, refer to note 31,
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31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties represent the Government of Abu Dhabi and related departments and institutions (owner of the
majority shareholder), associated companies, joint ventures, majority shareholder, directars and key management
personnel of the Company, and entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by such parties.
Pricing policies and terms of these transactions are approved by the Company’s management.

Transactions with related parties included in the consolidated income statement are as follows:

2012 2011
Qperating Interext Other Operating interest Other

Revinue costs EXpEnLE income Revanue Casts FXpEnsE Incoma

AEDD00 AED'C00 AFDDOR AED'000 AEDOD0 AED'000 AFD00D AED'O00
Associatad companies £ 30,175 = 4,229 - 89,904 4,262
Joint venture - = - = 6510
Majority shareholder 8,333 - 36,959 - 312,464 - 40,333
Assoclate of a majority sharehalder 121,848 - - - 106,299
Government rolated departments
and institutions 14,061 108,931 64,300 - 33,948 95,303 51,012

Balances with related parties included in the consalidated statement of financial position are as follows:

2012
Loan Mandatory Accounts Accounts Interest bearing
recelvable convertible band Receivabli payables and leans and Islamic
and subardinated advances financing
toan facility darrangemants
AED'D00 AED'000 AED000 AED0D0 AEDODO
Assaclated companies - - 28,105 30,707
Ioint vantura 56,544 - 5,538
Majority sharehalder (i) o 3,011,067 - - -
Associate of a majority sharehalder - - 24,450 73,369 -
Governiment related departments
and |nstitutions - - 13,467 4,142 1,757,439
56,544 3,011,067 71,590 108,718 1,757,439
2011
Loan Mandatory Accounts Accounts Interest bearing
recelvable convertible bond Receivable payables and leans and Islamic
and subordipated advances financing
loan facility arrangements
AED0DO AED'000 AED000 AEDOO0 AED000
Assoclated companies 3,662 - 19,724 33,291 -
lolnt venture 56,544 - 5,058 - -
Majority sharehalder (1) - 2,855,105 - - -
Associate of a majority sharehaolder . 257,338 400,000
Government related departmants
and Institutions - - 8,724 10,165 1,811,956
60,206 2,855,105 290,844 443,406 1,811,956
(i) Refer note 27 for details.
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31 December 2012

31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS continued

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Transactions with related parties are made at agreed terms and conditions

analysed as follows:

Loan to an associate
Loan to a joint venture
Mandatory convertible band 1

Mandatory convertible bond
1A

Mandatory convertible bond
ic

Subordinated loan facility A

Subordinated loan facility B
Accounts receivable
Accounts payable

Advance fram a related party

Terms and conditions

Interest bearing, unsecured, settlement in cash
Interast free, unsecured, settlement in cash
Interest bearing, unsecured, coupon settled in
kind

Interest bearing, unsecured, coupon settled in
kind

Interest bearing, unsecured, coupon settled in
kind

Interest bearing, unsecured, coupon settled in
kind

Interest bearing, unsecured, settled |n cash
Interest free, unsecured, settled in cash
Interest free, unsecured, settled in cash
Interest free, unsecured, settled on net basis

approved by management and are

2012
AED ‘000

56,544
1,833,028

411,181

716,858

58,123
30,707
73,869

2011
AED ‘000

3,662
56,544
1,759,582

696,238

399,285
282,120

13,241
400,000

There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. For the year
ended 31 December 2012, no impairment was recorded (2011: AED nil) relating to amounts owed by related parties,
This assessment Is undertaken each financial year through examining the financlal position of the related party and
the market in which the related party operates.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management personnel during the year was as follows:

Short-term benefits

Employees’ end of service benefits

Number of key management persannel

2012 2011
AED ‘000 AED ‘000
21,849 17,085

1,645 944
23,494 18,029
17 18
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32 CONTINGENCIES
Bank guarantees
The bankers have issued guarantees on behalf of the Group as follows:
2012 2011
AED ‘000 AED ‘000
Performance guarantees 127,998 103,686
Advance payment guarantees 3,131 11,351
Financial guarantees 6,589 8,925
137,718 123,962

The Company’s share of contingencies of associates as of 31 December 2012 amounted AED 13 million (2011:
AED 7 million). The Company expects no outflow of economic resources and accordingly no provision has been
made In the consolidated financial statements,

33 COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments

The authorised future capital expenditure contracted for at 31 December 2012 but not provided for amounted to
AED 75 million (2011: AED 157 million). The Company’s share of authorised future capital expenditure of
associates and Joint ventures at 31 December 2012 amounted to AED 147 million (2011: AED 57.8 million).

Operating lease commitments - lessor

The Company enters into cooling service agreements with its customers for the provision of chilled water, Some of
these agreements qualify to be classified as a lease based on IFRIC 4 and are accounted for as an operating lease
based on IAS 17 as the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to the customer.

These non-cancellable leases have remaining terms of between 15 and 25 years. All leases include a clause to
enable upward revision of the rental charge on a periodic basis accarding to prevailing market conditions.

Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 December are as follows:

2012 2011

AED 000 AED 000

Within one year 228,110 198,543

After one year but not mare than five years 1,208,703 1,180,391
More than five years 2,621,910 2,874,675

4,058,723 4,253,609

Included In operating lease commitments is an amount of AED 846 million relating to a related party. (2011: AED
887 million).

49



5

=

1
| tabreed

National Central Cooling Company PJSC f

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2012

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise interest bearing loans and borrowings,
Islamic financing arrangements, obligations under finance lease, mandatary convertible bond and subordinated
loan facility — liability component, trade payables and due to related parties. The main purpose of thase financial
liabilities is to raise finance for the Group’s operations and construction activity, The Group has varieus financial
assets such as finance lease receivable, trade recelvables, due from related parties and cash and short-term
depaosits, which arise directly from its operations.

The Group enters into derlvative transactions to manage the interest rate risk arising from the Group's sources of
finance.

Itis, and has been throughout 2012 and 2011 the Group’s policy that no trading in derivatives shall be undertaken.

The Group Is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees
policles for managing each of these risks which are summarised below.

Market risk

Market price risk Is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices. Market prices comprise the following types of risk: interest rate risk and currency risk.

Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, finance lease receivable,
finance lease liability and derivative financial instruments.

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 December 2012 and 2011,

The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating
interest rates of the debt and derivatives and the proportion of financlal instruments in foreign currencies are all
constant and on the basis of the hedge designations in place at 31 December 2012 and 2011.

The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses;

The statement of financial position sensitivity relates to derivatives instruments.

The sensitivity of the relevant income statement item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective
market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at 31 December 2012 and
2011 including the effect of hedge accounting.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate becausa
of changes in market interest rates,

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s debt
obligations and deposits with floating interest rates.

To manage the risk relating to its variable interest borrowings, the Company enters into interest rate swaps, In
which the Company agrees to exchange, at specified Intervals, the difference between fixed and variable rate
interest amounts calculated by reference to an agreed upon notional principal amount. These swaps are
designated to hedge underlying debt obligations. At 31 December 2012, after taking into account the effect of
interest rate swaps, approximately 59% of the Group's borrowings are at a fixed rate of interest (2011: 64%).
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES continued
Interest rate risk continued

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group's profit for one year (through the impact on short term deposits and un
hedged portion of loans and borrowings).

Effect on profit
AED ‘000
2012
+100 Increase in basis points (8,733)
-100 decrease in basis points 8,733
2011
+100 increase in basis points (8,897)
-100 decrease in basis points 8,897

The Impact on equity relating to derlvatives designated as effective cash flow hedges could nat be determined in
the absence of information from counter party banks.

Fareign currency risk

Fareign currency risk is the risk that the falr value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The majority of transactions and balances are in either UAE Dirhams or US Dollars or currencies that are pegged to
USD. As the UAE Dirham is pegged to the US Dollar, balances in US Dollars are not cansidered to represent significant
foreign currency risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial Instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily for
trade receivables, amounts due from related parties and finance lease receivable) and from its financing activities,
including depasits with banks and financial institutions and other financial instruments.

The Group trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties. It is the Group's policy that all custamers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis. The maximum exposure is the carrying amount as disclosed In notes 17 and 18.
The Group's three largest customers including a related party account for approximately 54% of outstanding trade
and related party receivable balances at 31 December 2012 (2011: 3 customers - 68%). Amounts due in respect of
finance lease receivable are from two customers (2011: two customers).

With respect to credit risk arising from other financial assets of the Group, which comprise cash and short term
deposits and certain derivative instruments, the Group’s exposure to credit risk arlses from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments, The Group seeks to
limit its credit risk to banks by only dealing with reputable banks.
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES continued

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a cash flow model. This tool considers the maturity of its
financial assets (eg, accounts receivable, finance lease receivables and other financial assets) and projected cash

outflows from operations and capital projects,

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank loans and available facilities from suberdinated loan facility.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at 31 December 2012 based on
undiscounted payments and current market interest rates.

Less than 3 Jtel2 itoh
On demand months maonths Years =5 years Total
AED'000 AED'OOD AED'000 AED0OO AFD'000 AED000
At 31 December 2012
Mandatary convertible bond - 30,147 90,441 482,351 150,735 753,674
Interest bearing loans and borrowings - 17,806 187,944 238,908 1,458,194 2,499,849
Qhbligaticns under finance laases . 1,937 5,810 30,985 4,516 43,238
Islamic financing arrangamants a 5,541 41,515 197,566 461,675 706,297
Accounts and retention payable, due ta
related parties and other financial liabilities - 199,051 283,245 6,280 = 483,176
254,482 609,555 1,553,087 2,075,120 4|49] 244
At 31 December 2011
Mandatory convertible bond and subardinated
Loan facility — liability component . 5 . 827,770 234,319 1,062,089
Interest bearing loans and borrowlings & 18,673 128,152 370,497 1,701,804 2,719,256
Obligations under finance |eases . 1,937 5,812 30,994 12,254 50,997
Islamic financing arrangements ¢ 5,633 30,596 204,996 522,829 764,054
Actounts and retantion payable, due to
rolated parties and other finandal liabllitios % 273,037 397,663 18,084 - 688,784
299,280 562,763 1,952,341 2,471,296 5,285,180

Capital management
The primary abjective of the Group’s capital management is to achieve strong credit metrics and healthy capital
ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages Its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions.
There are no regulatory imposed requirements on the level of share capital which the Group has not met,

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratlo, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The
Group includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, Islamic financing arrangements, mandatory
convertible bond and subordinated loan facility — llabllity component, obligations under finance lease, less cash
and short term deposits. Capital includes total equity excluding non-controlling interests less cumulative changes
in fair value of derivatives.
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES continued

Capital management continued

Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Islamic financing arrangements
Mandatory convertible bond and
subordinated loan facility = liability component
Obligation under finance lease

Less: cash and cash equivalents

Net debt

Equity

Adjustment for cumulative changes in fair values of derivatives and

available for sale investments
Total capital

Capital and net debt

Gearing ratio

I = 7

- p—t

(| ]] tabreed
2012 2011
AED ‘000 AED ‘000
2,115,907 2,183,732
528,684 538,206
657,929 909,860
33,476 37,817
3,335,996 3,669,615
(560,417) (511,997)

2,775,579 3,157,618

4,346,358 3,821,692
48,500 41,157
4,394,858 3,362,849
7,170,437 7,020,467
39% 45%

The decrease in the gearing ratio is mainly attributable to conversion of subardinated loan facility into Mandatory

Convertible Bond (note 27) and increase in reserves.

35 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair values

The fair values of the Group’s financial instruments are not materially different from their carrying values at the
reporting date except for finance lease receivable, mandatory convertible bond and subordinated loan facility and
abligations under finance lease with fixed interest rates. Set out below is a comparlson of carrying amounts and

fair values of such instruments:

Finance lease receivable
Obligations under finance lease
Mandatory convertible bond and
subordinated loan facility — liabllity component

Carrying Amount Fair Value
2012 2011 2012 2011
AED ‘000 AED 000 AED ‘000 AED 000
1,740,368 1,726,115 2,090,014 1,712,668
33,476 37,817 42,034 49,252
657,929 909,860 649,470 928,924
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35 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Fair value hierarchy
As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Group held the following financial instruments measured at fair value.

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by
valuation technique.

Level1:  quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for Identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2:  other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are
observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3:  techniques which use Inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded falr value that are not
based on observable market data.

2012 2011
1 3
Orcember Decembar
2012 Level 1 Lovel 2 Levei 3 201 vl 1 Level 2 Loviel 3
ArD'000 AED'000 AEDO00 AFp000 AED'00D AEDO00 AEDD00 AEDDO0
Assats measured at fair value
Interest rate swaps . = - . 13,075 = 13,075
Liabllities maasured at fair value
Interest rate swaps 54,984 - 54,984 - 58,008 2 58,008

During the reporting periods ended 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011, there were no transfers between
Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements, and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements,

Hedging activities

Cash flow hedges
The Group is exposed to variability in future interest cash flows on interest bearing loans and borrowings and
Islamic financing arrangements which bear interest at a variable rate.

In order to reduce Its exposure to interest rate fluctuations on the interest bearing loans and borrowings and
Islamic financing arrangements, the Company has entered into interast rate swaps with counter-party banks
designated as effective cash flow hedges for notional amounts that mirror the drawdown and repayment schedule
of the |oans. The notional amount of the interest rate swaps was AED 2,095 million as at 31 December 2012 (2011:
AED 2,175 million).

A schedule indicating the maturity profile of the derivative related assets and liabilities as at 31 December is as
follows:

Within 1
year 1-3years 3-8 years Total
AED 000 AED ‘000 AED ‘000 AED ‘000
2012:
Cash inflows (assets) 311 400 - 711
Cash outflows (liabilities) (21,581) (21,358 (5503) _ (48,442)
Net cash outflow (21,270) {20,358) (5,503) (47,731)
2011:
Cash inflows (assets) 1,364 3,043 - 4,407
Cash outflows (liabilities) (24,18§L {35,685) (7,753) (67,621)
Net cash outflow (22,819) {32,642) (7,753) (63,214)

All derivative contracts are with counterparty banks in UAE.




